

2024-2027 State Management Plan

for Federal Transit Administration Public Transportation Programs

M 3078

February 2024

ENGLISH

Title VI Notice to Public

It is the Washington State Department of Transportation's (WSDOT) policy to assure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, as provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise discriminated against under any of its programs and activities. Any person who believes his/her Title VI protection has been violated, may file a complaint with WSDOT's Office of Equity and Civil Rights (OECR). For additional information regarding Title VI complaint procedures and/or information regarding our non-discrimination obligations, please contact OECR's Title VI Coordinator at 360-705-7090.

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Information

This material can be made available in an alternate format by emailing the Office of Equity and Civil Rights at wsdotada@wsdot.wa.gov or by calling toll free, 855-362-4ADA(4232). Persons who are deaf or hard of hearing may make a request by calling the Washington State Relay at 711.

ESPAÑOL

Notificación de Titulo VI al Público

La política del Departamento de Transporte del Estado de Washington (Washington State Department of Transportation, WSDOT) es garantizar que ninguna persona, por motivos de raza, color u origen nacional, según lo dispuesto en el Título VI de la Ley de Derechos Civiles de 1964, sea excluida de la participación, se le nieguen los beneficios o se le discrimine de otro modo en cualquiera de sus programas y actividades. Cualquier persona que considere que se ha violado su protección del Título VI puede presentar una queja ante la Oficina de Equidad y Derechos Civiles (Office of Equity and Civil Rights, OECR) del WSDOT. Para obtener más información sobre los procedimientos de queja del Título VI o información sobre nuestras obligaciones contra la discriminación, comuníquese con el coordinador del Título VI de la OECR al 360-705-7090.

Información de la Ley sobre Estadounidenses con Discapacidades (ADA, por sus siglas en inglés)

Este material puede estar disponible en un formato alternativo al enviar un correo electrónico a la Oficina de Equidad y Derechos Civiles a wsdotada@wsdot.wa.gov o llamando a la línea sin cargo 855-362-4ADA(4232). Personas sordas o con discapacidad auditiva pueden solicitar la misma información llamando al Washington State Relay al 711.

한국어 - KOREAN

제6조 관련 공지사항

워싱턴 주 교통부(WSDOT)는 1964년 민권법 타이틀 VI 규정에 따라, 누구도 인종, 피부색 또는 출신 국가를 근거로 본 부서의 모든 프로그램 및 활동에 대한 참여가 배제되거나 혜택이 거부되거나, 또는 달리 차별받지 않도록 하는 것을 정책으로 하고 있습니다. 타이틀 VI에 따른 그/그녀에 대한 보호 조항이 위반되었다고 생각된다면 누구든지 WSDOT의 평등 및 민권 사무국(OECR)에 민원을 제기할 수 있습니다. 타이틀 VI에 따른 민원 처리 절차에 관한 보다 자세한 정보 및/또는 본 부서의 차별금지 의무에 관한 정보를 원하신다면, 360-705-7090으로 OECR의 타이틀 VI 담당자에게 연락해주십시오.

미국 장애인법(ADA) 정보

본 자료는 또한 평등 및 민권 사무국에 이메일 wsdotada@wsdot.wa.gov 을 보내시거나 무료 전화 855-362-4ADA(4232)로 연락하셔서 대체 형식으로 받아보실 수 있습니다. 청각 장애인은 워싱턴주 중계 711로 전화하여 요청하실 수 있습니다.

русский - RUSSIAN

Раздел VI Общественное заявление

Политика Департамента транспорта штата Вашингтон (WSDOT) заключается в том, чтобы исключить любые случаи дискриминации по признаку расы, цвета кожи или национального происхождения, как это предусмотрено Разделом VI Закона о гражданских правах 1964 года, а также случаи недопущения участия, лишения льгот или другие формы дискриминации в рамках любой из своих программ и мероприятий. Любое лицо, которое считает, что его средства защиты в рамках раздела VI были нарушены, может подать жалобу в Ведомство по вопросам равенства и гражданских прав WSDOT (ОЕСR). Для дополнительной информации о процедуре подачи жалобы на несоблюдение требований раздела VI, а также получения информации о наших обязательствах по борьбе с дискриминацией, пожалуйста, свяжитесь с координатором ОЕСR по разделу VI по телефону 360-705-7090.

Закон США о защите прав граждан с ограниченными возможностями (ADA)

Эту информацию можно получить в альтернативном формате, отправив электронное письмо в Ведомство по вопросам равенства и гражданских прав по адресу wsdotada@wsdot.wa.gov или позвонив по бесплатному телефону 855-362-4ADA(4232). Глухие и слабослышащие лица могут сделать запрос, позвонив в специальную диспетчерскую службу штата Вашингтон по номеру 711.(4232). Глухие и слабослышащие лица могут сделать запрос, позвонив в специальную диспетчерскую службу штата Вашингтон по номеру 711.

tiếng Việt - VIETNAMESE

Thông báo Khoản VI dành cho công chúng

Chính sách của Sở Giao Thông Vận Tải Tiểu Bang Washington (WSDOT) là bảo đảm không để cho ai bị loại khỏi sự tham gia, bị từ khước quyền lợi, hoặc bị kỳ thị trong bất cứ chương trình hay hoạt động nào vì lý do chủng tộc, màu da, hoặc nguồn gốc quốc gia, theo như quy định trong Mục VI của Đạo Luật Dân Quyền năm 1964. Bất cứ ai tin rằng quyền bảo vệ trong Mục VI của họ bị vi phạm, đều có thể nộp đơn khiếu nại cho Văn Phòng Bảo Vệ Dân Quyền và Bình Đằng (OECR) của WSDOT. Muốn biết thêm chi tiết liên quan đến thủ tục khiếu nại Mục VI và/hoặc chi tiết liên quan đến trách nhiệm không kỳ thị của chúng tôi, xin liên lạc với Phối Trí Viên Mục VI của OECR số 360-705-7090.

Thông tin về Đạo luật Người Mỹ tàn tật (Americans with Disabilities Act, ADA)

Tài liệu này có thể thực hiện bằng một hình thức khác bằng cách email cho Văn Phòng Bảo Vệ Dân Quyền và Bình Đẳng wsdotada@ wsdot.wa.gov hoặc gọi điện thoại miễn phí số, 855-362-4ADA(4232). Người điếc hoặc khiếm thính có thể yêu cầu bằng cách gọi cho Dịch vụ Tiếp âm Tiểu bang Washington theo số 711.

ARABIC - العَرَىنة

العنوان 6 إشعار للجمهور

تتمثل سياسة وزارة النقل في ولاية واشنطن (WSDOT) في ضمان عدم استبعاد أي شخص، على أساس العرق أو اللون أو الأصل القومي من المشاركة في أي من برامجها وأنشطتها أو الحرمان من الفوائد المتاحة بموجبها أو التعرض للتمييز فيها بخلاف ذلك، كما هو منصوص عليه في الباب السادس من قانون الحقوق المدنية لعام 1964. ويمكن لأي شخص يعتقد أنه تم انتهاك حقوقه التي يكفلها الباب السادس تقديم شكوى إلى مكتب المساواة والحقوق المدنية (OECR) التابع لوزارة النقل في ولاية واشنطن. للحصول على معلومات إضافية بشأن إجراءات الشكاوى و/أو بشأن التزاماتنا بعدم التمييز بموجب الباب السادس، يرجى الاتصال بمنسق الباب السادس في مكتب المساواة والحقوق المدنية على الرقم 7090-705-360.

معلومات قانون الأمريكيين ذوى الإعاقة (ADA)

يمكن توفير هذه المواد في تنسيق بديل عن طريق إرسال رسالة بريد إلكتروني إلى مكتب المساواة والحقوق المدنية على wsdotada@wsdot.wa.gov أو عن طريق الاتصال بالرقم المجاني: Washington State Relay على الرق 711. الصم أو ضعاف السمع تقديم طلب عن طريق الاتصال بخدمة

中文 - CHINESE

《权利法案》 Title VI公告

<華盛頓州交通部(WSDOT)政策規定,按照《1964年民權法案》第六篇規定,確保無人因種族、膚色或國籍而被排除在WSDOT任何計畫和活動之外,被剝奪相關權益或以其他方式遭到歧視。如任何人認為其第六篇保護權益遭到侵犯,則可向WSDOT的公平和民權辦公室(OECR)提交投訴。如需關於第六篇投訴程式的更多資訊和/或關於我們非歧視義務的資訊,請聯絡OECR的第六篇協調員,電話360-705-7090。

《美国残疾人法案》(ADA)信息

可向公平和民權辦公室發送電子郵件wsdotada@wsdot.wa.gov或撥打免費電話 855-362-4ADA(4232), 以其他格式獲取此資料。听力丧 失或听觉障碍人士可拨打711联系Washington州转接站。

Af-soomaaliga - SOMALI

Ciwaanka VI Ogevsiiska Dadwevnaha

Waa siyaasada Waaxda Gaadiidka Gobolka Washington (WSDOT) in la xaqiijiyo in aan qofna, ayadoo la cuskanaayo sababo la xariira isir, midab, ama wadanku kasoo jeedo, sida ku qoran Title VI (Qodobka VI) ee Sharciga Xaquuqda Madaniga ah ah oo soo baxay 1964, laga saarin ka qaybgalka, loo diidin faa'iidooyinka, ama si kale loogu takoorin barnaamijyadeeda iyo shaqooyinkeeda. Qof kasta oo aaminsan in difaaciisa Title VI la jebiyay, ayaa cabasho u gudbin kara Xafiiska Sinaanta iyo Xaquuqda Madaniga ah (OECR) ee WSDOT. Si aad u hesho xog dheeraad ah oo ku saabsan hanaannada cabashada Title VI iyo/ama xogta la xariirta waajibaadkeena ka caagan takoorka, fadlan la xariir Iskuduwaha Title VI ee OECR oo aad ka wacayso 360-705-7090.

Macluumaadka Xeerka Naafada Marykanka (ADA)

Agabkaan ayaad ku heli kartaa qaab kale adoo iimeel u diraaya Xafiiska Sinaanta iyo Xaquuqda Madaniga ah oo aad ka helayso wsdotada@wsdot.wa.gov ama adoo wacaaya laynka bilaashka ah, 855-362-4ADA(4232). Dadka naafada maqalka ama maqalku ku adag yahay waxay ku codsan karaan wicitaanka Adeega Gudbinta Gobolka Washington 711.

If you have difficulty understanding English, you may, free of charge, request language assistance services by calling 360-705-7800 or email us at: PubTrans@wsdot.wa.gov

ESPAÑOL - SPANISH

Servicios de traducción

Aviso a personas con dominio limitado del idioma inglés: Si usted tiene alguna dificultad en entender el idioma inglés, puede, sin costo alguno, solicitar asistencia lingüística con respecto a esta información llamando al 360-705-7800, o envíe un mensaje de correo electrónico a: PubTrans@wsdot.wa.gov

한국어 - KOREAN

번역 서비스

영어로 소통하는 것이 불편하시다면 360-705-7800, 으로 전화하시거나 다음 이메일로 연락하셔서 무료 언어 지원 서비스를 요청하실 수 있습니다: PubTrans@wsdot.wa.gov

русский - RUSSIAN

Услуги перевода

Если вам трудно понимать английский язык, вы можете запросить бесплатные языковые услуги, позвонив по телефону 360-705-7800, или написав нам на электронную почту: PubTrans@wsdot.wa.gov

tiếng Việt - VIETNAMESE

các dịch vụ dịch thuật

Nếu quý vị không hiểu tiếng Anh, quý vị có thể yêu cầu dịch vụ trợ giúp ngôn ngữ, miễn phí, bằng cách gọi số 360-705-7800, hoặc email cho chúng tôi tại: PubTrans@wsdot.wa.gov

الْعَرَبِيَّةُ - ARABIC

خ دمات الترجمة

إذا كنت تجد صعوبة في فهم اللغة الإنجليزية، فيمكنك مجانًا طلب خدمات المساعدة اللغوية عن طريق الاتصال بالرقم 8718-570-360 أو مراسلتنا عبر البريد الإلكتروني : PubTrans@wsdot.wa.gov

中文 - CHINESE

翻译服务

如果您难以理解英文,则请致电:360-705-7800,或给我们发送电子邮件:PubTrans@wsdot.wa.gov,请求获取免费语言援助服务。

Af-soomaaliga - SOMALI

Adeegyada Turjumaada

Haddii ay kugu adag tahay inaad fahamtid Ingiriisida, waxaad, bilaash, ku codsan kartaa adeegyada caawimada luuqada adoo wacaaya 360-705-7800 ama iimayl noogu soo dir: PubTrans@wsdot.wa.gov

Contents

Acronyms and abbreviations	6
Introduction	6
Definitions	6
Legal authority	7
Federal program goals	7
State policy goals	8
Roles and responsibilities	10
Coordination	12
Eligibility	15
Section 5304	15
Section 5310	15
Section 5311	16
Section 5339	17
Services and service areas	18
Projects	18
Local and state share funding requirements	20
Method of distributing funds and program development process	21
Section 5311(f) – Intercity Bus Program	25
Section 5311(b)(3) – Rural Transportation Assistance Program	28
State administration and technical assistance	29
Implementing federal policies	30
Civil rights	30
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises	31
Title VI	31
Section 504 and the Americans with Disability Act	32
Charter Bus Service Regulations	32
Private sector participation	32
Other provisions	33
State program management	36
Financial management and project monitoring	36
Maintenance	39
Vehicle use	39
Disposition	40

Acronyms and abbreviations

Americans with Disabilities Act **ADA BIPOC** Black, Indigenous, People of Color¹

CFR Code of Federal Regulations FTA Federal Transit Administration GMS **Grants Management System**

MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization **OECR** Office of Equity and Civil Rights **RCW Revised Code of Washington**

RFP Request for proposals

RTPO Regional Transportation Planning Organization

USC **United States Code**

WSDOT Washington State Department of Transportation

Introduction

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) provides financial assistance to states through a number of programs to develop new transit systems and improve, maintain, and operate existing systems.

FTA requires that states adopt policies and procedures for administering FTA Title 49 USC:

- Section 5304 Statewide Planning
- Section 5310 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
- Section 5311 Rural Areas
- Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities programs

States must also produce a plan describing the state's policies and procedures for the statemanaged portion of these programs. Washington's State Management Plan for Federal Transit Administration Public Transportation Programs describes the state's administrative policies and procedures for these FTA programs.

The Consolidated Grant Guidebook provides grantees with guidance on implementing federal policies.

Definitions

When used in this plan, the meaning of nonurbanized area, small urban area and urban area is:

- Nonurbanized area Any area outside of an urbanized area. This term includes rural areas and urban areas under 50,000 in population not included in an urbanized area. This plan commonly uses the term rural to refer to all areas other than urbanized areas.
- Small urban area An urbanized area with a population of at least 50,000 but less than 200,000.
- Urban area An area with a population greater than 200,000.

WSDOT has adapted these definitions from the U.S. Census Bureau and the FTA.

Throughout this plan, WSDOT chose to use the more inclusive term "BIPOC" instead of the term "minority" used in the FTA Title VI Circular. For the purpose of this document, the terms are synonymous.

For a list of rural, small urban or urban agencies, refer to the most recent edition of the WSDOT's Summary of Public Transportation.

For other definitions and acronyms used in this plan, see WSDOT's Consolidated Grant Guidebook.

Legal authority

The Washington Governor designated the WSDOT as the authorized agency for administering federal assistance the Sections 5304, 5310, 5311 and 5339 programs.

FTA is responsible for national implementation of these grant programs and provides program guidance in circulars:

- Circular 8100.1D Program Guidance for Metropolitan Planning and State Planning and Research Program Grants
- Circular 9070.1G Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Program Guidance and Application Instructions
- Circular 9040.1G Formula Grants for Rural Areas: Program Guidance and Application Instructions
- Circular5100.1 Bus and Bus Facilities Program: Guidance and Application Instructions

Circulars describe the intent of the grant programs and explain funding requirements. These requirements include program management and development of the State Management Plan. This plan must comply with the circulars and with other state requirements that aren't in conflict with the circulars.

Federal program goals

Section 5304

FTA defines the Section 5304 program goals in Circular 8100.1D:

Statewide Planning: These funds support the statewide planning efforts concerning the integration of multimodal solutions into the transportation system. This funding supports multimodal transportation planning in metropolitan areas and states that is cooperative, continuous and comprehensive.

Planning activities may also include long-range plans and short-range programs of transportation investment priorities may be a result of the planning efforts.

Section 5310

FTA defines the Section 5310 program goals in Circular 9070.1G:

To enhance mobility for seniors and persons with disabilities.

Toward this goal, FTA provides financial assistance for transportation services planned, designed, and carried out to meet the special transportation needs of elderly individuals and individuals with disabilities in all areas (i.e., urbanized, small urban, rural).

Under the Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act, the Section 5310 program also supports activities formerly covered by Section 5317, New Freedom.

The Section 5310 program requires coordination of federally assisted programs and services to make the most efficient use of federal resources.

Section 5311

FTA defines the Section 5311 program goals in Circular 9040.1F:

To support public transportation in rural areas with populations less than 50,000, where many residents often rely on public transit to reach their destinations.

Additionally, Title 49 USC Section 5311(f), Intercity Bus Program requires the state to spend not less than 15 percent of the annual Section 5311 program funding to develop and support intercity bus transportation, unless the Governor certifies to the U.S. Secretary of Transportation that the intercity bus service needs of the state are being met.

Section 5339

FTA defines the Section 5339 program goals in Circular 5100.1:

To provide funding to replace, rehabilitate, and purchase buses and related equipment, as well as construct bus-related facilities.

State policy goals

Washington Transportation Plan and RCW 47.04.280, Transportation System Policy Goals

WSDOT administers FTA public transportation programs within the guidelines of the most current Washington Transportation Plan and RCW 47.04.280, Transportation System Policy Goals.

The transportation policy goals cited in both documents are:

- Preservation To maintain, preserve, and extend the life and utility of prior investments in transportation systems and services, including the state ferry system.
- Safety To provide for and improve the safety and security of transportation customers and the transportation system.
- Stewardship To continuously improve the quality, effectiveness, resilience, and efficiency of the transportation system.
- Mobility To improve the predictable movement of goods and people throughout Washington state, including congestion relief and improved freight mobility.
- Economic vitality To promote and develop transportation systems that stimulate, support, and enhance the movement of people and goods to ensure a prosperous economy.
- Environment To enhance Washington's quality of life through transportation investments that promote energy conservation, enhance healthy communities, and protect the environment.

Results Washington

Results Washington is the governor's strategic framework to set the state's vision and mission, as well as the foundational expectation of all state agencies to achieve goals collaboratively.

Results Washington combines aspects of previous performance management systems with a significantly expanded lean initiative that involves all state agencies.

Results Washington's outcome measures are:

- World-class education
- Prosperous economy
- Sustainable energy and a clean environment
- · Healthy and safe communities
- Efficient, effective and accountable government

Transportation is directly linked to prosperous economy; sustainable energy and a clean environment; healthy and safe communities; and efficient, effective and accountable government.

WSDOT's vision, mission, values, strategic plan, and community engagement plan

Vision

Washington travelers have a safe, sustainable and integrated multimodal transportation system.

Mission

We provide safe, reliable and cost-effective transportation options to improve communities and economic vitality for people and businesses.

Values

- Safety
- Engagement
- Innovation
- Integrity
- Leadership
- Sustainability

Strategic Plan

WSDOT's Strategic Plan provides goal areas that guide the work of the agency. The plan's goal areas are:

- **Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion** We each strive to advance our culture of belonging and access so that all feel included, supported, valued, and safe.
- Workforce Development Be an employer of choice by hiring, training and retaining skilled workers to meet Washington's transportation needs.
- **Resilience** Plan and/or invest resources to improve our ability to mitigate, prepare for, and respond to emergencies; combat climate change; and build a transportation system that provides equitable services, improves multimodal access, and supports Washington's long-term resilience.

Community engagement plan

WSDOT's community engagement plan guides how the agency engages with partners, stakeholders, tribes, local governments, and communities for all WSDOT efforts from the earliest planning through project and service delivery continuing into maintenance and operations.

Roles and responsibilities

State administration

WSDOT's role in state administration of FTA's public transportation programs includes:

- Documenting Washington's procedures in the State Management Plan, providing opportunities for stakeholder input, and making the plan available to grantees, planning organizations, general public, and FTA approval for each updated version.
- Notifying potential participants about the grant programs and soliciting applications.
- Developing project selection criteria and competitive selection process.
- Arranging for the evaluation of potential projects for funding.
- Reviewing, prioritizing, and selecting projects for funding.
- Developing elements of the State Transportation Improvement Program for each FTA section.
- Developing and forwarding an annual program of projects and grant application to FTA.
- Certifying eligibility of applicants and project activities.
- Developing agreements with selected agencies.
- Monitoring local project activity and that transit providers participate in regional transportation improvement plan development.
- Ensuring grantee compliance with all federal requirements, including all certifications and assurances.
- Overseeing project audit and award closeout.
- Submitting reports as required by FTA, including National Transit Database reporting for Section 5311 grantees and any other specialty reporting for federal grantees.
- Distribute funds on a fair and equitable basis.
- Supporting and overseeing the coordinated public transit-human services transportation
 plans in rural and urban areas in Washington, which are developed through a process
 including representatives from:
 - Public transportation.
 - Private and nonprofit transportation.
 - Human services providers.
 - The public, including limited-English-proficiency; Black, Indigenous, People of Color (BIPOC); and low-income populations.
 - WSDOT.
- Certifying that all projects funded through Section 5310 are from a locally developed coordinated public transit-human services transportation plan. As a matter of policy, Section 5311 and the state apportionment of 5339 projects are also required to be included in a coordinated public transit-human services transportation plan.

- Sponsoring the grant competition and providing oversight and management of Section 5310 funding to non-transit organizations within the Puget Sound Regional Council area. WSDOT receives up to 10 percent of the awards to cover the costs of administering the grants.
- Supporting Department of Enterprise Services in developing statewide vehicle and equipment contracts.
- Overseeing the grantee procurement process to ensure compliance.
- Ensuring that grantees operate and maintain equipment purchased with grant funds consistently with project objectives.
- Certifying asset management plans for vehicles, equipment, and facilities.

Program-specific roles

Section 5311

- Developing and implementing a program of training and technical assistance under Section 5311(b)(3), the Rural Transit Assistance Program.
- Developing and implementing the Intercity Bus Program under Section 5311(f).
- Ensuring that grantees with projects funded through Section 5311 develop their projects in coordination with transportation projects assisted by other federal sources.

Sections 5310 and 5311

Planning for future transportation needs and ensuring coordination among transportation modes and providers.

Statewide advisement

As required by state law (RCW 47.66.080), WSDOT reviews the division's existing grant programs at least once per biennium. The purpose of this review is to determine the effectiveness of the programs and that the agency's methods for awarding funds result in a fair and equal distribution of the grants. The review also helps WSDOT staff revise their grant award and oversight process.

To carry out this review, WSDOT invites staff from organizations that represent public transportation interests to participate in the Grant Program Advisory Consultation as members or subject matter experts to review application and evaluation criteria, learn information about the programs, and evaluate WSDOT's grant administration processes. These organizations include:

- Community Transportation Association of the Northwest.
- For-profit public transportation providers.
- Regional transportation planning organizations/metropolitan planning organizations (RTPO/ MPO).
- Washington State Transit Association.
- Tribal government representatives.
- · Community action councils.
- · WSDOT staff.

Regulation

The Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission regulates private nonprofit organizations that transport seniors or people with disabilities in vehicles that hold seven occupants or more. These regulations include driver training, safety of operation (including vehicle inspection), and minimum insurance levels for liability.

Program of projects

WSDOT staff creates a program of projects when applying for new funds based on Sections 5304, 5310, 5311, and 5339 awards.

WSDOT reviews the program of projects periodically throughout the year to monitor spending and funding adjustments as necessary.

During the first month of each federal fiscal year, WSDOT submits an updated program of projects along with annual reporting required by FTA. If no updates are necessary, WSDOT will confirm that the program of projects is current.

Coordination

Coordinated public transit-human services transportation plans

WSDOT requires applicants for public transportation grants to participate in the Coordinated public transit-human services transportation planning process with their local RTPO/MPO:

- Benton-Franklin Council of Governments Benton and Franklin counties.
- Chelan-Douglas Transportation Council Chelan and Douglas counties.
- Island RTPO Island County.
- Northeast Washington RTPO Ferry, Pend Oreille, and Stevens counties.
- Okanogan Council of Governments Okanogan County.
- Palouse RTPO Asotin, Columbia, Garfield, and Whitman counties.
- Peninsula RTPO Clallam, Jefferson, Kitsap, and Mason counties.
- Puget Sound Regional Council King, Kitsap, Pierce, and Snohomish counties.
- Quad-County RTPO Lincoln, Adams, Grant, and Kittitas counties.
- Skagit Council of Governments Skagit County.
- Southwest Washington Regional Transportation Council Clark, Skamania, and Klickitat counties.
- **Southwest Washington RTPO** Cowlitz, Grays Harbor, Lewis, Pacific, and Wahkiakum counties.
- Spokane Regional Transportation Council Spokane County.
- Thurston Regional Planning Council Thurston County.
- Walla Walla Valley MPO and Sub-RTPO Walla Walla County.
- Whatcom Council of Governments Whatcom County.
- Yakima Valley Conference of Governments Yakima County.

San Juan County produces a local coordinated Public Transit- Human Services Transportation Plan but does not belong to a regional transportation planning organization or council.

The initial coordinated public transit-human services transportation planning process includes the following steps:

- 1. Project manager of the plan convenes stakeholders, including RTPO/MPOs; public transportation providers; nonprofit human services agencies; healthcare providers; large employers; consumers; and limited-English-proficiency, BIPOC, and low-income populations.
- 2. Stakeholders collect human service and demographic information and analyze public transportation, and potential riders in each region. Examples of information include:
 - **Common origins** Locations of low-income populations, people with disabilities, and the elderly.
 - **Common destinations** Entry-level employment opportunities, childcare facilities, schools, medical centers, shopping districts.
 - Existing transportation services Fixed-route, intercity bus and rail, shuttle, demand response, paratransit, shared-ride taxi, regular taxi, vanpools, rideshare, and other commuter services.
- 3. Stakeholders identify various types of transportation challenges and gaps in existing transportation services.
- 4. Stakeholders compare origins and destinations of people with special needs using existing transportation services.
- 5. Stakeholders identify the unmet needs and duplication of efforts in study area. The definition of an unmet need is:
 - A project that doesn't exist where the project team has identified a need.
 - A service that the local transportation provider is removing, even though the service currently meets a need (e.g., evening or weekend service).
 - A project that a local transportation provider would be unable to fund without the public transportation grant program.
- 6. Stakeholders develop prioritized solutions to meet unmet needs and address those in project proposals.

Transportation solutions vary in each area depending on the resources available, size of the market for each alternative, and extent of existing services. Examples of options include increasing fixed-route service (e.g. extending hours or territory), vanpool services, dial-a-ride services, volunteer ride services, and bus passes.

Once the plan is complete, RTPOs/MPOs² rank projects by letter grades. The letter grade determines the number of additional points the project will receive:

- A Automatically funded.*
- B 25 points.
- C 12 points.
- D 0 points.
- Not ranked Disqualified from consideration.

*WSDOT will automatically fund A-ranked projects as long as WSDOT has appropriate funding for the project.

Alternatively, the county in the case of San Juan County, which produces a local Coordinated Public Transit- Human Services Transportation Plan but does not belong to a regional transportation planning organization or council.

Coordination at the state level

Coordination is the most important element to the success of federal funding programs in Washington. State law, WSDOT policy and the Washington Transportation plan require and implement coordination.

An element of state level coordination is the development and distribution of grant program information. WSDOT accomplishes this primarily through the statewide notice of the Public Transportation Grant Application, providing program information on the WSDOT Public Transportation Division website, and community engagement associated with program changes to the State Management Plan. The Public Transportation Grant Application contains the required information about the programs in Washington.

Another coordination element is the various agencies and organizations representatives on evaluation teams that assist WSDOT with project selection (see Method of distributing funds and program development process for a list of agencies that participate in this process). Representatives provide a broad and balanced perspective to the evaluation process.

When WSDOT makes program changes, the agency announces the availability of an updated draft State Management Plan and requests comments from the stakeholders and the community.

WSDOT considers comments for inclusion in the plan and makes the final plan available on the Public Transportation Division's website and upon request.

WSDOT also coordinates activities under Section 5311 with related activities under other federal departments and agencies.

Coordination at the project level

WSDOT expects all applicants to coordinate with other transportation providers in their service area. As part of their grant application, WSDOT asks applicants to:

- 1. Identify the local coordinated public transit-human services transportation plan that identifies the project need.
- 2. Consult with tribes that have reservation land or operate transit services within the local transit service provider(s') service area to ensure coordination of efforts and inclusivity of services.

Additionally, WSDOT strongly encourages applicants to take part in coordinated transportation planning activities in their service area. State law also requires WSDOT to take local coordination efforts into consideration when awarding state funded grants.

Eligibility

Section 5304

Recipients

The State and Metropolitan Planning Organizations are eligible recipients of Section 5304 planning funds.

Activities

WSDOT and eligible recipients use Section 5304 funds to conduct statewide planning efforts that:

- Develop strategies for addressing multimodal connectivity.
- · Develop strategies for special needs populations.
- Determine the state's interest in public transportation.
- Engage stakeholders to develop shared outcomes.
- Produce the Washington State Public Transportation Plan.

Planning efforts include stakeholder participation from organizations representing:

- · Local agencies.
- · State agencies.
- · Federal agencies.
- Tribal governments.

- Nonprofits.
- · Private transportation providers.
- Advocacy groups.
- · Medicaid brokers.

Section 5310

Recipients

The following entities are eligible to receive Section 5310 capital (including mobility management) and operating grant funds, as well as purchase of service agreements:

- Private nonprofit organizations.
- Governmental authorities or operators of public transportation that receive a grant indirectly (i.e., through WSDOT) and certify that no nonprofit organizations in the service area are readily available to provide the services.
- Governmental authorities approved by the state to coordinate services for elderly individuals and individuals with disabilities.
- Tribal governments.

WSDOT requires private nonprofit applicants to:

- Hold or obtain a certificate from the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission that authorizes nonprofit agencies to provide transportation.
- Hold a 501(c)(3) certificate verifying nonprofit status.
- Register with the Washington State Secretary of State.

Activities

To receive Section 5310 funds, projects must be included in a locally developed, coordinated public transit-human services transportation plan developed through a process that includes seniors and people with disabilities.

WSDOT must use at least 55 percent of program funds on capital projects that are public transportation projects planned, designed, and carried out to meet the special needs of seniors and individuals with disabilities when public transportation is insufficient, inappropriate, or unavailable. Projects may contract for public transportation service as a capital expense. Additionally, preventative maintenance may be considered a capital expense.

WSDOT may use up to 45 percent of program funds for operating projects that are:

- Public transportation projects that exceed the requirements of the ADA.
- Public transportation projects that improve access to fixed-route service and decrease reliance by individuals with disabilities on ADA-complementary paratransit.
- Alternatives to public transportation that assist seniors and people with disabilities.

A public transportation service provider that receives assistance under this section may coordinate and assist in regularly providing meal delivery service for homebound individuals if the delivery service doesn't conflict with providing public transportation service or reduce service to public transportation passengers.

Section 5311

Recipients

The following entities are eligible to receive Section 5311 capital and operating grant funds and (for the intercity bus program only) purchase of service agreements:

- State agencies.
- Local governmental agencies and their divisions.
- Tribal governments.
- Private nonprofit organizations.
- · Transit agencies.
- Private for-profit organizations.

Activities

Section 5311 authorizes the following grants for recipients located in rural areas:

- Planning, provided that a grant under this section for planning activities are in addition to funding awarded to a state under Section 5305 for planning activities that are directed specifically at the needs of rural areas in the state.
- Public transportation capital projects, including preventative maintenance.
- Operating costs of equipment and facilities for use in public transportation.
- Job access and reverse commute projects.
- Acquisition of public transportation services, including service agreements with private providers of public transportation services.

Small urban transit agencies may qualify for Section 5311 funding if the route is predominantly for connecting rural riders with the city. When WSDOT provides 5311 funds to an urban provider, WSDOT only funds the provider's rural routes that bring riders into urban areas and that the provider has designed for the benefit of the rural riders.

Surface Transportation Program transfers

On occasion, the Federal Highway Administration will give Surface Transportation Program funds to WSDOT that are in turn awarded to rural transit agencies for competitive projects. Upon request, WSDOT will assist the grantees with the management of those funds. In order for WSDOT to do so, the funds must be transferred from the Federal Highway Administration to the Section 5311 Program. Once the funds are transferred, the funds are managed in the same way as the 5311 Program.

Section 5339

Recipients

The following entities are eligible to receive Section 5339 capital funding for fixed-route bus service, including operators providing services open to a segment of the general public, as defined by age, disability, or low income:

- · State agencies.
- · Local governmental agencies and their divisions.
- Private nonprofit organizations.
- · Transit agencies.
- Tribal governments.

Note: FTA distributes Section 5339 small urban allotment similar to Section 5307 methodology. WSDOT distributes the state Section 5339 apportionment using a consolidated, competitive procedure. See Method of distributing funds and program development process for more information on this procedure.

Activities

FTA authorizes the following projects to replace, rehabilitate, and purchase buses and related equipment under Section 5339:

- Construction of bus-related facilities, such as bus maintenance and administrative facilities, transfer facilities, bus malls, transportation centers, intermodal terminals, park-and-ride stations.
- Acquisition of buses for fleet and service expansion.
- · Acquisition of replacement vehicles.
- · Bus rebuilds.
- Construction of passenger amenities such as passenger shelters and bus stop signs.
- Acquisition of accessory and miscellaneous equipment, such as mobile radio units, supervisory vehicles, fare boxes, and computers.
- · Acquisition of shop and garage equipment.

Services and service areas

For the majority of programs, the services provided with capital or operating grants focus on rural areas of Washington. Services into Idaho, Oregon or British Columbia are eligible if the public served resides in Washington. Procuring vehicles with grant funds to support cross-state service is also eligible.

Projects may include public transportation into and out of urbanized areas. However, projects may not provide service exclusively within an urban area.

Note: Section 5311(f) describes network corridors. See Section 5311(f), Intercity Bus Program for more information.

Projects

Capital

Vehicles and equipment

All equipment purchased under these programs must be used to provide passenger transportation services.

Examples of eligible capital projects include:

- · Passenger service vehicles.
- Commuter vans.
- · Refurbishment of existing vehicles.
- · Vehicle retrofit for wheelchair lifts.
- Replacement parts for passenger service vehicles.
- Communications equipment.
- Computer hardware, data systems, and dispatching software.
- Other equipment (e.g., bicycle racks, fare boxes).
- Bus shelters and accessible features for sidewalks and facilities.
- Maintenance equipment (e.g., bus lifts).
- · Security equipment.
- Electric vehicle charging stations.

Construction

Construction of transit-related facilities can be eligible for federal funding. Examples of eligible construction projects include:

- · Bus transfer stations.
- · Maintenance facilities.
- Operations and administration facilities.
- · Park and ride lots.
- Transit-related roadway construction.
- Infrastructure for electric charging stations.

Operating

Operating assistance usually consists of activities and services that the grantee directly provides or purchases.

Examples of eligible operating activities include:

- Operating assistance for rural public transportation services.
- Operating assistance for paratransit/special needs transportation services within or beyond ADA requirements.
- Rural feeder bus service for the intercity bus network.
- Operating assistance for transportation to and from jobs and employment support services.

Purchase of service

WSDOT utilizes purchase of service agreements when the agency is the grant recipient and directly contracts with transportation service providers to provide eligible public transportation services as determined by the federal funding source.

Examples of eligible purchase of service activities include:

- WSDOT conducts a request for proposal (RFP) process and awards contracts to provide intercity feeder service to support a statewide intercity transportation network under Section 5311(f).
- WSDOT may consider purchase of service agreements when sufficient Section 5310 funding is available, there is a recognized need, and/or WSDOT decides to fund specific demonstration projects for the elderly and/or persons with disabilities.

Mobility management

Mobility management projects fosters coordination among existing transportation providers and expands the availability of services.

Examples of eligible mobility management activities include:

- Promoting, enhancing, and facilitating access to transportation services.
- Supporting short-term management activities to plan and implement coordinated services.
- Supporting coordination policy bodies or councils.
- Operating transportation brokerages to coordinate providers, funding agencies, and customers.
- Providing coordinated services such as navigator systems, individualized travel training, and trip planning.
- Developing and operating one-stop transportation traveler call centers.
- Planning to acquire intelligent transportation technologies to coordinate systems such
 as vehicle scheduling, smart card systems, geographic information system mapping,
 global positioning systems, integrated information- telecommunications technology, and
 dispatching systems.

Planning

Examples of eligible planning activities include developing:

- Local or regional marketing plans for special needs or rural public transportation.
- Local or regional coordination plans.
- Agency financial and operating plans.
- Comprehensive transportation plans.
- Public transportation feasibility plans.

Local and state share funding requirements

WSDOT ensures grantees meet match requirements for all federally funded projects and activities.

Below are the specific local and state share funding requirements for projects that receive funding through the federal programs administered by WSDOT. The Public Transportation Division ensures the federal match requirement is met at or prior to requesting payments through the Federal Electronic Clearing House Operation (ECHO).

Capital projects

The required local and/or state share for capital assistance is 20 percent of eligible expenses. Grantees may meet this requirement using a combination of local funds and eligible state funds. Additional local, state, and/or federal funds may supplement the project, depending on availability.

WSDOT permits a local share greater than 20 percent if the total eligible capital expenses exceed the amount budgeted.

Restrictions on the local share of the project costs include:

- Grantees can't derive the local share from U.S. Department of Transportation federal funds.
- The funding source may not place use restrictions on the equipment.
- The funding source must not affect the legal ownership of the equipment.

Operating projects

The local and/or state share for operating assistance is 50 percent of the net eligible expenses (gross expenses less fares and/or donations). Grantees may meet this requirement by using a combination of local funds and eligible state funds. Based on availability, WSDOT may supplement the project with additional local, state, or federal funds if the total net eligible expenses exceed the budget.

The source of the local share for operating assistance must comply with the Federal Transit Act and amendments, which permits the use of federal funds received from a state social service agency such as Medicaid and Title IIIB. WSDOT allows in-kind match with preapproval.

Purchase of service, mobility management and planning projects

The required local and/or state share for purchase of service, mobility management and planning assistance is 20 percent of eligible expenses. If these efforts are funded as an operating project, they may require a 50 percent match. Grantees may meet this requirement by using a combination of local funds and eligible state funds. Based on availability, WSDOT may supplement the project with additional local, state, or federal funds if the total net eligible expenses exceed the budget. WSDOT allows in-kind match with preapproval.

Method of distributing funds and program development process

Application cycle

WSDOT distributes federal program funds through a consolidated application process.

The consolidated application process coincides with the state biennial cycle. WSDOT makes applications available in the late summer to early fall of even years. Grant contracts resulting from the application process cover 24-month and 48-month periods that begin in July of the following year.

The benefits of the consolidated application process include:

- Alignment of federal and state grant applications on the same cycle, maximizing the ability
 of state funds to match federal projects.
- Single, combined call for projects.
- Minimization of paperwork for applicants.
- Single application process for state and federal public transportation funding.
- Guarantee of two years of operating assistance to grantees and four years of operating assistance for grantees that demonstrate consistent need.
- Flexibility for the state to select the funding sources used for specific projects that meet the highest prioritized unmet needs.
- Produces a list of public transportation needs for the state Legislature during the budget cycle.

WSDOT developed the consolidated application process with representatives from:

- Washington State Transit Association.
- Community Transportation Association of the Northwest.
- State Senate and House Transportation Committee staff.

Application method

Each biennium, WSDOT establishes evaluation teams that review applications and make recommendations to WSDOT regarding project priorities.

WSDOT works with the following agencies and organizations for potential representation on evaluation teams:

- Washington State Department of Commerce.
- Washington State Association of Counties or Association of Washington Cities.
- Community Transportation Association of the Northwest.
- State or regional aging programs (e.g., area agency on aging, Aging and Disability Services Administration).
- RTPOs/MPOs.
- Washington State Transit Association.
- Governor's Office of Indian Affairs or an individual representing tribal governments.
- · Community action councils.
- Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission.
- Rider advocates.
- Contracted reviewers with transportation experience.

Potential grantees use a single grant application form, regardless of the type of funding they intend to use for the project.

Applications are available through the web-based Grants Management System (GMS).

WSDOT provides a written explanation of the application questions and a complete description of the evaluation process in the GMS and pdf application instructions document. WSDOT's Public Transportation Division also offers technical assistance in grant writing. To avoid conflict of interest, WSDOT staff not involved with the evaluation of grant applications provide such technical assistance.

During the application period, WSDOT conducts training workshops and develops instructional materials to explain program requirements, the application process, and project selection to potential applicants. These workshops are beneficial in coordinating public transportation providers.

Application evaluation criteria

WSDOT establishes the criteria used by evaluation team members. Team members receive the criteria and evaluation materials simultaneously.

WSDOT also distributes the criteria to all potential applicants. Team members score all applications on the following components:

1. Project component

- Does the project establish, preserve, or improve public transportation services in a community?
- Does the project address a recognized need in the community?
- Does the applicant report the leveraging of funds from other sources to support the implementation of the project?
- Does the project reflect a community process of coordination and input?
- Does the project appear to be feasible as described?
- Does the project connect with other systems or modes?
- Does the project help the state maintain the number of vehicles that are within their minimum useful life?

2. Applicant component

- Does the applicant report sufficient experience in managing transportation projects to provide assurance of success?
- Does the applicant report sufficient experience in managing previous grant awards?
- Does the applicant report sufficient financial capability and resources to implement and successfully carry out the project?
- Does the applicant report a long-term commitment to the project to continue the effort beyond the availability of the requested grant resources?
- Does the applicant risk warrant award of federal or state funds?

3. Performance component

- Does the project describe community benefits resulting from the grant?
- Does the project define the performance measures to be used in determining the success of the project?
- Does the project describe an active effort aimed at improving efficiency and effectiveness?

Applicant outreach

To comply with Title VI requirements, WSDOT (Public Transportation Division) implements a four-step process for outreach to limited-English-proficiency, BIPOC, and low-income populations.

- Planning WSDOT provides resources to the local planning organizations that are
 responsible for developing and updating their coordinated public transit-human services
 transportation plans. In the scope of work for these planning contracts, WSDOT includes
 a requirement to conduct outreach to limited-English-proficiency, BIPOC, and low-income
 populations.
- 2. **Solicitation of projects** During the call for projects, WSDOT reviews applications to ensure adequate consideration of limited-English-proficiency, BIPOC, and low-income populations.
- Grant awards -WSDOT compares the complete final project list to statewide demographics
 to ensure limited-English-proficiency, BIPOC, and low-income populations have access to
 services.
- 4. Project implementation WSDOT instructs grantees to conduct outreach and report their outreach activities on a quarterly basis. WSDOT staff provide guidance to grantees through technical assistance, site visits at least once every biennium (actual frequency depends on risk assessment of the grantee), grant management training, and the Consolidated Grant Guidebook.

Application rating process

WSDOT provides the evaluation team members with copies of project applications, evaluation instructions, materials, and evaluation criteria. WSDOT establishes a date for the completion of the rating process.

WSDOT evaluators use ranking method of evaluation.

WSDOT instructs evaluators to compare each project against the evaluation criteria. Each evaluator creates their own independent ranked list, placing projects according to how they address the evaluation criteria.

WSDOT creates a combined list of ranked projects based on individual evaluator lists and reassembles the evaluation teams to discuss the merits of each proposal and the evaluators' individual evaluations. The result of these discussions is consent on a prioritized list of projects for recommendation to WSDOT.

WSDOT then adds project points from the ranking to the points projects receive through the regional scoring process described in Coordinated public transit-human services transportation plans. WSDOT reviews, revises as necessary, and approves the final prioritized list established by this step.

After the preceding step, WSDOT reviews the successful projects in the final prioritized list to determine the most appropriate funding source for projects. WSDOT makes final awards after the governor signs the state transportation budget, and FTA notifies WSDOT of the allocation amount for the FTA programs.

WSDOT reserves the right to award FTA funds to priority projects outside the competitive process. WSDOT may also reduce funding for some projects based on evaluation team recommendations, their placement on the list of projects, and the available state and federal funds.

WSDOT develops a project budget based on the final prioritized list and notifies all applicants of the result of their application. WSDOT request successful applicants to submit the applicable certifications and assurances and to hold a public hearing, if required. After the successful applicants complete the required documentation, WSDOT submits the program of projects to FTA for funding.

Equity of distribution

WSDOT announces the availability of the Public Transportation Grant Application on the agency's Public Transportation Division website. Additionally, WSDOT makes an extensive distribution to all applicants from the prior grant cycles, as well as other agencies, associations, tribes, and individuals listed on a mailing list of interested parties maintained by the agency.

WSDOT compares the final project list to the statewide demographics to ensure adequate consideration of project awards that serve limited-English-proficiency, BIPOC, and low-income areas. WSDOT documents and reviews disparities for consistency with federal and state rules and regulations.

WSDOT coordinates with MPOs for projects in designated transportation management areas of the state. For example, during the 2023-2025 funding cycle WSDOT provided administration and oversight for 19 projects selected for funding by the Puget Sound Regional Council.

Adjustment of awards and subsequent call for projects

WSDOT may adjust grant awards based on grantee performance, needs, unforeseen external factors (e.g., partners withdrawing pledged match, partners no longer providing transportation service), and/or danger of lapsing program funds. In these adjustments, WSDOT won't increase any project's budget by more than 20 percent, and will ensure the project maintains statutory match levels. WSDOT may make exceptions in extraordinary circumstances such as inflation.

If WSDOT doesn't award all available funds through the competitive process or if actual project expenses are below budget and creating a potential of unspent funds, WSDOT may conduct a call for smaller projects within the federal funding cycle. If this occurs, WSDOT will review and award funds based on appropriate criteria.

Public participation

Federal law requires that the public be involved in the transportation planning process. Private providers also must have an opportunity to be involved in the development of transportation plans and programs. WSDOT meets these requirements through involvement in the Grant Program Advisory Consultation, grant evaluation teams, and participation in planning processes such as the Washington State Intercity Bus Plan and the regional coordinated public transit-human services transportation plans.

WSDOT will consult with tribes consistent with federal and state laws regarding tribal consultation.

WSDOT may also require grantees to hold a public hearing if their project will substantially affect a community or the public transportation services of a community.

These grantees sign the public hearing certification prior to contract signature by WSDOT.

Distribution of funds during an emergency

In the event of a federal or state emergency declaration, WSDOT may forego a competitive application process for distribution of federal program funds.

In such an event, WSDOT may use a formula process for distribution of the funds and forgo local match requirements. Grantees must use the funds specifically for meeting public transportation needs during the emergency.

Section 5311(f) - Intercity Bus Program

Section 5311(f) Program goals include:

Implement meaningful scheduled transport connections between rural and urban areas with the national intercity transportation network.

- Support operating services to meet the intercity travel needs of residents in rural and small urban areas.
- Sustain the infrastructure of the state's intercity bus network through capital investments in facilities, vehicles, equipment, planning, and marketing.
- Plan the development and implement the enhancement and preservation of essential intercity bus services on deficient corridors.
- Support a network of intercity bus services and meaningful scheduled connections within a national system.
- Encourage the incorporation of new intercity services with inter-line ticketing capabilities.
- Identify a variety of funding strategies.

WSDOT sets aside 15 percent of its annual Section 5311 program funding for intercity bus purposes.

WSDOT's 2007 Washington State Intercity Bus Plan identifies a statewide intercity public transportation network of places connected by corridors and linked by intermodal facilities, referred to as network corridors. The plan defines standards for service and facilities on the network.

The plan recommends an alternative method to the current consolidated application process for selecting service providers. This method involves assessment, planning, and implementation.

WSDOT developed the plan with the cooperation of intercity carriers, human service providers, transit agencies, local governments, regional transportation planning organizations, the Washington State Utilities and Transportation Commission, FTA, and local citizens groups to address intercity bus needs. The intercity network plan:

- Reviewed the current and potential funding requirements.
- Looked at statewide intercity needs and deficiencies in service and facilities.
- Discussed various barriers and challenges to intercity transportation.
- Made recommendations on the program's purpose, goals, eligibility, and evaluation criteria.

In 2019, WSDOT updated the 2007 plan.

Assessment

FTA permits funding for planning under Section 5311(f) with up to 80 percent federal match. Planning may involve an annual consultation and network plan update, as well as a statewide intercity bus plan update.

To conduct the annual consultation process, WSDOT staff contact intercity providers and analyze their current service to determine if they are meeting intercity needs. WSDOT consults intercity providers regarding the long- and short-term needs of the intercity network and their assessment of meeting those needs.

To identify intercity bus needs statewide, WSDOT conducts outreach to various stakeholders through the coordinated public transit-human services transportation planning process and regional planning organization meetings. The planning phase includes a consultation process before WSDOT distributes funds.

Planning

In 2007, WSDOT conducted a study of rural intercity transportation needs in response to Greyhound's reduction of rural bus services to 22 rural communities. Based on the study's recommendations, WSDOT established Travel Washington, the state's intercity bus program.

Travel Washington planned and implemented rural intercity bus routes in key corridors throughout the state. Travel Washington continues to assess the need in deficient corridors to enhance intercity bus service to rural communities in an effort to provide access and mobility to the national network.

As mentioned previously, WSDOT updated its Intercity Bus Plan in 2019 and has continued to implement planning with rural human service transportation providers, private intercity bus providers, local rural transit agencies, regional transit planning organizations, local transit planning organizations, and local governments. The planning effort includes the use of Geographic Information System data, Census data, and modelling using Transportation Research Board tools to geographically map populations, and identify and assess other underserved corridors in the state. The planning effort is also evaluating interstate connectivity to assess needs in corridors where travel patterns occur, and service gaps may exist.

Implementation

WSDOT uses a RFP process for intercity bus program service, which is different from the consolidated application process.

WSDOT advertises for the needed intercity bus service and contracts with a third-party provider after an open bidding process. This process ensures that WSDOT supports the most needed services, while selecting the most qualified candidates to provide service on a particular route.

WSDOT ensures the fair selection of a service provider by screening RFP applications in a committee of qualified professionals including WSDOT regional staff, as well as private and nonprofit transportation representatives.

Contracts from the RFP process are typically for two to four years, with the option for an additional two years.

In cases where additional funding similar to recovery or stimulus funding is made available, WSDOT may issue additional call for projects using a competitive grants process.

Eligible grantees

The following entities are eligible to participate in the intercity bus program RFP process:

- Private for-profit organizations.
- Public transportation agencies.
- Tribal governments.
- Nonprofit organizations.
- Local governmental agencies (i.e., cities, counties, special districts).

Eligible projects

Intercity bus program projects must serve people residing in rural and small urban communities.

WSDOT reimburses all organizations for eligible expenses during the project period. Eligible activities include:

- · Planning.
- · Marketing.
- Capital vehicle and equipment purchases.
- Operating assistance for intercity and feeder services.

See the following sections for eligible projects.

Capital

Capital assistance consists of up to 80 percent federal contribution toward eligible capital purchases. WSDOT requires a 20 percent local and/or state match for all projects.

Eligible projects include:

- Purchase of new ADA-accessible, lift-equipped buses.
- · Vehicle refurbishment.
- · Vehicle retrofit for wheelchair lifts.
- Purchase of computer hardware and data systems.
- · Purchase of communication equipment.
- Construction of passenger shelters.
- · Modifications to transit facilities.

Operating

New and existing intercity bus services must be located on deficient corridors and connect rural communities to small urban or urban areas. WSDOT identifies corridors through the intercity bus program planning process. The corridors are eligible under the 5311(f) Program.

For matching purposes, Washington state's intercity bus program uses up to 50 percent of the capital costs of non-subsidized connecting intercity carriers. These services link rural communities and urban centers along corridors provided by fixed route intercity bus services. WSDOT may determine that minor route deviated service along the corridor may is eligible on a case-by-case basis. Feeder bus services that are fixed-route, route-deviated, and/or demand response must make meaningful scheduled connections to intercity providers on the state's intercity public transportation network.

Generally, intercity bus services must:

- Be fixed route and fixed schedule.
- Feature inter-line ticketing capabilities.
- Have the ability to carry luggage, bicycles and bus package express.
- Operate at least five days per week.
- Provide meaningful scheduled connections to the national intercity network.
- Be ADA-accessible.

Section 5311(b)(3) – Rural Transportation Assistance Program

WSDOT administers Section 5311(b)(3) program funding directly to assist in the design and implementation of training and technical assistance projects, as well as other support services tailored to meet the specific needs of transit operators in non-urbanized areas. The program funding applies to rural and/or urban providers/agencies that provide service in rural areas.

WSDOT Public Transportation Division staff administer the Rural Transportation Assistance Program (RTAP) and establish the biennial activities and priorities for each of the assistance categories through consultation with rural transportation providers. WSDOT staff perform consultation during the development and review of training programs, scholarship programs, and technical support. Providers receive representation at the National Rural Transportation Assistance Program through membership on the advisory board and through the state Rural Transportation Assistance Program manager at WSDOT.

Training

WSDOT uses a combination of contracted and in-house trainings, as well as virtual tools and peer sharing events, to ensure that training needs for rural and tribal providers are met. WSDOT surveys agencies and organizations at least once per biennium to collect information about unmet training needs and preferred delivery methods, including current and relevant industry information to be shared with peers.

RTAP funds in the form of grants are used to solicit training providers and tools. WSDOT issues a call for proposals on a biennial basis to contract out some trainings, tools, and additional events. A volunteer group of rural transportation experts evaluates the proposals. Priority needs and related project deliverables receive the highest consideration within project scoring. If extra funding is available WSDOT may conduct additional solicitations throughout the biennium.

Scholarship program

WSDOT provides training scholarships to employees and agents of rural or special needs transportation organizations. The scholarships cover a portion of the registration and travel expenses associated with attending training classes, conferences, or workshops.

Applicants apply in advance for the scholarship and submit a post-training evaluation and expense worksheet upon completion of the event. A limit to the number of scholarships per agency per year may apply to ensure funding for the entire biennium.

Technical assistance

WSDOT facilitates the sharing of best practices, policy templates, and other tools so agencies receive the optimal technical assistance regardless of limited financial and labor resources.

WSDOT may use Rural Transportation Assistance Program funds to provide ad hoc technical assistance to public transportation providers, associations, and organizations representing rural public and specialized transportation agencies. Examples of ad hoc technical assistance include development of website capabilities, assessment panels, peer reviews, and attendance at transportation-related committee meetings.

Peer review program

An agency may request assistance and/or a review from WSDOT in organization or operational areas. The agency's need determines the scope of the review. WSDOT assembles a technical assistance team made up of the provider's peers to review any issues. RTAP funds may be used to reimburse the costs of training, travel, and per diem expenses of peer reviewers who provide this assistance.

Washington State Public Transportation Conference

WSDOT uses RTAP funds to support the annual statewide Public Transportation Conference, including fees for conference speakers presenting on rural and specialized transportation issues, administrative costs related to hosting the conference, and scholarships for conference participants.

State administration and technical assistance

FTA Circular 9040.1F permits WSDOT to retain up to 10 percent of the state's fiscal year apportionment of Section 5311 program funding for state administration, planning, and technical assistance. Additionally, FTA Circular 9070.1G permits WSDOT to retain up to 10 percent of the state's fiscal year apportionment of Section 5310 program funding for state administration, planning, and technical assistance.

WSDOT uses these funds for staff, travel, and support costs associated with managing the federal grant programs and providing technical assistance. Examples of these activities include:

- Developing the Consolidated Grant Application in the web-based GMS for prospective applicants.
- Developing and distributing the Consolidated Grant Guidebook.
- Administering the biennial Grants Policy Advisory Consultation and consolidated application evaluation team.
- Conducting site visits and desk reviews.
- Meeting with provider staff and applicants to clarify requirements.
- Obtaining and updating the required assurances and documentation.
- Assisting RTPOs/MPOs with their coordinated public transit-human services transportation planning process.
- Developing grant applications to FTA.
- Developing and monitoring grant agreements with grantees.

- Developing statewide procurement contracts for vehicles and equipment to assist grantees in meeting their procurement needs.
- Coordinating and overseeing grantees' capital procurement processes.
- Overseeing grantees' accounting procedures and records, including the requirements in the Consolidated Grant Guidebook.
- Reviewing grantee's drug and alcohol policies.
- Preparing required reports to FTA.
- Implementing the state's Rural Transit Assistance Program.
- Providing technical assistance and tutorials.
- Updating the State Management Plan.
- Advertisement and room rental costs for applicant workshops.
- Conducting an RFP for the Intercity Bus Program.

Implementing federal policies

WSDOT's applicants and grantees understand that violation of an agreement may require corrective measures and penalties, including debarment from receiving further federal assistance for transportation purposes. WSDOT confirms grantee compliance during site visits and/or desk reviews.

The Consolidated Grant Guidebook provides grantees with guidance on implementing federal policies.

Civil rights

Grantees must submit all required certifications and assurances prior to contract signature and annually thereafter. These include:

- · Certified Standard Assurances.
- Non-Discrimination Assurance Certification.
- Assurance of Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability.
- Protections for Private Providers of Public Transportation.

WSDOT includes the appropriate civil rights disclosure on the inside cover of the Public Transportation Grant Application and includes civil rights clauses in grantee agreements.

WSDOT provides ongoing oversight to grantees through site visits and/or desk reviews. The checklist WSDOT uses during grantee visits/reviews includes a section that verifies compliance with civil rights issues (i.e., non-discrimination, employment, complaints, proper notification, outreach, and accessibility of services).

WSDOT reaches potential grantees serving significant BIPOC populations through the coordinated public transit-human services transportation plan process and by broad distribution of grant funding announcements and application materials.

Disadvantaged Business Enterprises

Grantees must take reasonable steps to ensure that Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) have the opportunity to compete for and perform contracts. WSDOT staff coordinates with the Office of Equity and Civil Rights (OECR) and provides technical assistance to help grantees meet the federal DBE requirements.

All FTA grantees who anticipate that they will award contracts totaling over \$250,000 during the federal fiscal year (October 1–September 30) must have a DBE program (49 CFR 26). Contracts to purchase transit vehicles do not count toward the \$250,000 total. Grantees must report purchases made from DBE vendors to WSDOT quarterly and provide a description of their good faith efforts to locate and purchase from DBE vendors.

OECR will evaluate all federally funded capital construction contracts for project specific Condition of Award (COA) DBE goal. Federally funded consultant contracts relevant to capital construction projects will also be evaluated. OECR will assign COA DBE goal for federally funded capital construction contracts totaling over \$250,000. WSDOT Public Transportation Division staff will coordinate with OECR and provide technical assistance to help grantees meet the DBE requirements.

Title VI

WSDOT notifies each grant recipient that receives federal funds that they must comply with Title VI of the 1964 Civil Rights Act. WSDOT's Public Transportation Division reviews grantee compliance with Title VI requirements during site visits and desk reviews to ensure that the grantee's policies and procedures meet nondiscrimination standards set forth in the federal regulations.

Grantees that receive federal funds must develop a Title VI policy that describes how they'll ensure nondiscrimination to limited English proficiency, BIPOC, and low-income populations in their services. At a minimum, a grantee's policy must contain the following elements.

- Title VI notification to beneficiaries.
- Language assistance plan.
- Complaint process and procedures.
- Process for the inclusion of limited English proficiency populations, BIPOC, and low-income populations in outreach activities.

When applicable, a table depicting the racial breakdown of committee membership and a description of efforts made to encourage the participation of minorities on committees or councils.

Section 504 and the Americans with Disability Act

WSDOT notifies each grant recipient at the time of award that recipients must comply with all applicable federal and state laws regarding accessibility. WSDOT's Public Transportation Division conducts site visits and desk reviews that include an evaluation to ensure a system's policies and practices meet accessibility standards.

Each transportation system must have and follow a comprehensive ADA policy that includes, but is not limited to:

- Regular staff training on accessibility issues.
- Service animal policy.
- Proper use and maintenance of lifts and securement systems.
- Personal care attendant policy.
- Paratransit service policy, if applicable.
- · Complaint processes and policies.
- Other accessibility policies.

Charter Bus Service Regulations

WSDOT includes guidance on FTA's Charter Bus Service Regulations (49 CFR Part 604) in its Consolidated Grant Guidebook. WSDOT distributes the manual to all grantees prior to contract signature. The manual instructs grantees that they must comply with this Charter Bus Service Regulations if they receive Section 5311 funding.

All grantees considering charter service must contact WSDOT prior to providing charter service. Grantees considering charter service must also comply with the public participation process described in the rule.

WSDOT reviews compliance with the charter rule during site visits and/or desk reviews. When WSDOT receives complaints alleging unfair competition in regards to charter service, the agency investigates the allegation. In this process, WSDOT contacts the grantee to verify if the grantee is providing charter service and that grantee is following the proper process in implementing the service.

Private sector participation

Federal law specifically requires that grantees provide private providers an opportunity to consult in the development of transportation plans and programs in urbanized and rural areas. This opportunity must be proactive and provide complete information, timely public notice, full access to key decisions, and opportunities for early and continuing involvement throughout the transportation planning and programming process.

As part of the coordinated public transit-human services transportation planning and application process, applicants must coordinate their services with private providers. Coordination with all transportation providers in the same geographic area, including private sector providers, significantly affects an applicant's success in the coordinated public transit- human services transportation selection process.

Other provisions

Section 5333(b) - Labor Standards

Section 5333(b) (also be referred to as Section 13(c) Special Warranty, Labor Protections) provisions protect the interest of employees of grantees receiving Section 5311 funds.

WSDOT provides each grantee with a copy of the Consolidated Grant Guidebook. The guidebook contains a link to a U.S. Department of Labor webpage that details Section 5333(b) regulations.

Section 5311 grantees submit a letter to WSDOT accepting the Section 5333(b) Special Warranty prior to their first reimbursement. WSDOT staff verifies that the grantee has met the posting requirements during site visits and other project monitoring opportunities.

School transportation agreement

Grantees may not engage in school bus operations using buses, facilities, or equipment purchased with federal funding in competition with private school bus operators, except as provided for in 49 CFR Part 605 – School Bus Operations. Transit may provide tripper service (i.e., when a transit adjusts frequency of service to correspond with the beginning and end of the school day) to the general public.

WSDOT provides each grantee with a copy of the Consolidated Grant Guidebook. The guidebook contains information about 49 CFR Part 605.

Drug and alcohol testing

Grantees receiving Section 5311 or Section 5339 funds must adhere to drug abuse and alcohol misuse testing requirements. Grantees that receive Section 5310 funding must comply with the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration rules for employees who hold commercial driver license.

WSDOT provides technical assistance to grantees in the form of training, networking, policy development, and sharing resources found on the FTA's Drug & Alcohol Program web page.

When WSDOT notifies a grantee of a Section 5311 or Section 5339 grant award, the agency requires that the grantee submit their policies and procedures for review and approval prior commencing service.

To monitor a grantee's compliance, WSDOT developed checklists that agency staff use during desk reviews and/or site visits. The drug and alcohol checklists include, but are not limited to:

- · Policies.
- Procedures for managing a program.
- Employee training.
- Method of selecting participants for random testing.
- Procedures for conducting testing.
- Records management and retention.
- Service agency certification and oversight.

WSDOT requires grantees to submit annual reports to FTA's online Drug and Alcohol Testing Management Information System.

Drug-Free Workplace

WSDOT certifies its compliance with the federal drug-free workplace requirements to FTA annually. Additionally, WSDOT includes references to the Drug-Free Workplace Act in grantee contracts and certifies grantee compliance with the requirements during site visits by reviewing agency policies for inclusion of a drug-free workplace statement.

Environmental regulations

Under Section 5310, Section 5311 and Section 5339, WSDOT anticipates only funding projects with Categorical Exclusion from both the National Environmental Protection Act and the State Environmental Protection Act. The FTA's regulation classifies "categorically excluded" actions and projects into two groups. The first group, which have very limited or no environmental effects at all, are planning, technical studies, preliminary design work, program administration, operating assistance, and transit vehicle purchases. No environmental documentation is required for these projects. The second group involves construction and greater potential for off-site impacts, such as new construction or expansion of transit terminals, storage and maintenance garages, office facilities, and parking facilities. It is anticipated that the majority of WSDOT's FTA funded projects will belong to the first group and as such, require no environmental documentation. It is the sub-recipient's responsibility to ensure an appropriate level of environmental review for projects in the second group. WSDOT assists sub-recipients submitting the environmental documents to FTA, if requested. Federal funds won't be made available for any capital construction project until the environmental documents are reviewed and approved by FTA.

Vehicle purchases

WSDOT oversees the grantee vehicle and equipment purchase process. Grantees must, at a minimum:

- Conduct a procurement that is open and competitive.
- Conduct a procurement that doesn't give geographic preference.
- Conduct a procurement that doesn't result in a procurement contract exceeding five years.
- Award procurement contracts to only responsive and responsible bidders.
- · Include all federal clauses and certifications with their bidding documents and procurement contracts.

Additional details on federal procurement requirements are available online in WSDOT's Consolidated Grant Guidebook and in FTA's Best Practices Procurement Manual.

WSDOT developed a post-delivery checklist for grantees to use in complying with FTA's requirements. The post-delivery checklist addresses requirements, including:

- Buy America.
- Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards.
- Post-Delivery Review Requirements.

Grantees should use the post-delivery checklist before accepting the vehicle delivery. Depending on the complexity and size of the procurement, the grantee may visit the manufacturer's factory, as required by FTA.

WSDOT also developed a visual inspection form and road test form for grantees to use in the post-delivery inspection of vehicles.

WSDOT requires grantees to submit post-delivery certifications for Buy America, Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards, and Post-Delivery Review Requirements. Grantees must include a copy of the completed post-delivery checklists and certifications along with copies of all relevant vendor invoices, verification that vendors are not debarred/suspended, vehicle registration, insurance certificate, and acceptance letter to the vendor with their request for reimbursement.

Lobbying and code of ethics

WSDOT requires each grantee receiving more than \$100,000 to complete FTA's Certification Regarding Lobbying prior to contract signature. Grantees must also include this certification in all bid documents for equipment purchases they prepare.

WSDOT's contract with grantees requires adoption of a written code of ethics. All staff, officers, employees, board members, or agents of the grantee must comply with the code of ethics.

WSDOT verifies compliance with this requirement during site visits and/or desk reviews.

Reporting

WSDOT requires all grantees to prepare a variety of reports on a quarterly or annual basis.

Quarterly reporting may include, but is not limited to, tracking of civil rights complaints, expenditures, and project progress.

Grantees must also submit updated asset inventories annually.

WSDOT compiles information from grantees and submits the following standard FTA reporting elements for all programs:

- Annual program of projects status reports.
- Milestone activity reports.
- · Program measures.
- DBE report.
- · Complaints.
- · Program income.

Additionally, WSDOT collects and reports the following program specific information:

Section 5310

Traditional Section 5310 projects (i.e., public transportation capital projects planned, designed, and carried out to meet the special needs of seniors and individuals with disabilities when public transportation is insufficient, inappropriate, or unavailable):

- · Gaps in service filled.
- · Ridership.

Other Section 5310 projects:

- Service improvements.
- Physical improvements.
- Ridership.

Section 5311

National Transit Database reporting of capital investment, operations, and service data.

State program management

Financial management and project monitoring

State administration - accounting and financial reporting

WSDOT maintains a management system of financial reporting, accounting records, internal controls, and budget controls subject to standards specified in state laws and enforced by the Washington State Auditor's Office and the Washington State Office of Financial Management. Additionally, WSDOT's systems and procedures for financial management comply with 49 CFR 18.20, Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local Governments.

Procedures for documenting state administration expenditures for FTA-funded programs are subject to the requirements of WSDOT's Purchasing Manual M 72-80, *Chart of Accounts* M 13-02, and Transportation Reporting and Accounting Information System; and the Washington State Office of Financial Management's *State Administrative and Accounting Manual*.

WSDOT submits reimbursement requests to FTA through the Transit Award Management System for project expenditures based on the information contained in the WSDOT's Transportation Reporting and Accounting Information System.

Grantee financial management

WSDOT develops and signs grant agreements with organizations the agency awards funding assistance after the agency secures FTA and state funds.

All grant agreements for capital projects detail the equipment approved for purchase and the equipment's intended use.

All grant agreements for operating projects outline the type of service, the intended beneficiary, and the service area.

All grant agreements for planning projects outline the project in the agreement's scope of work and exhibits.

Grantees incur all project-related expenses locally and report expense to WSDOT after both parties sign the agreement. WSDOT reimburses the grantee with state and/or federal funds based on the proportions identified in the grant agreement. The federal share of any project will not exceed 80 percent for capital projects and 50 percent for operating projects. WSDOT identifies grant expenses by federal grant number, grant program, and grant agreement number in the agency's Transportation Reporting and Accounting Information System.

Grantees retain the original receipts for all eligible project expenses. For capital projects, grantees must attach copies of vendor invoices to reimbursement requests. WSDOT doesn't require grantees to submit copies of vendor invoices for operating projects. However, grantees must retain original receipts, as well as any spreadsheets or logs developed to track costs, for verification during WSDOT site visits. For planning projects, grantees must submit completed plans to WSDOT as a product of the agreement.

WSDOT does not accept in-kind contributions toward the local share of capital project costs. However, WSDOT may approve in-kind contributions for operating projects.

Grantees that wish to use in-kind contributions for matching purposes must submit a request to WSDOT for pre-approval. This request must describe the type of service the grantee will receive and how the grantee determined the value of the donated service.

Vehicle licensing costs are not eligible for capital project reimbursements. However, sales and use taxes charged to the grantee for vehicles are eligible. This amount must exclude the local transit portion of the sales tax. Additionally, vehicles with a capacity of 15 passengers or less including the driver that grantees use for ridesharing or transporting persons with special transportation needs are not subject to sales tax (RCW 82.08.0287).

WSDOT maintains individual data for each grantee. This data tracks project expenses, amounts charged to each funding source awarded, local matching sources, and project budgets. WSDOT compiles additional information summarizing the total expenses for each federal grant and uses the information to reconcile the expenses shown in the agency's Transportation Reporting and Accounting Information System. WSDOT also uses this information to revise the program of projects and project budgets.

Site visits

WSDOT staff conduct on-site visits and desk reviews to provide technical assistance, monitor awarded projects, and review documents and practices verifying compliance with program requirements. During the site visits and reviews, WSDOT staff use checklists outlining administrative, financial, and asset management requirements based on the following:

- Office of Management and Budget Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Super Circular) for grantees receiving operating funding assistance.
- Regulatory requirements attached to the receipt of federal funds, including the FTA.
- Master Agreement and Best Practices Procurement Manual.
- Vehicle inventory and maintenance records for grantees receiving capital funding assistance.
- Drug abuse and alcohol misuse testing regulations, when applicable.

The Consolidated Grant Guidebook provides grantees with guidance to meet these grant management requirements.

Audits

Grantees who spend less than \$750,000 in federal funds during the federal fiscal year (October 1 through September 30) are exempt from federal audit requirements. However, grantees must retain records and make them available for review or audit for up to six years beyond the term of the operating grant or the minimum useful life of the capital asset.

Grantees who spend in excess of \$750,000 threshold during the federal fiscal year must have either an annual single audit or program-specific audit conducted. Grantees must submit a copy of the audit report to WSDOT when it becomes available. WSDOT administration and public entities awarded project grants are subject to this process and compliance with the Office of Management and Budget Super Circular.

The Washington State Auditor's Office conducts state agency and local government audits. Private transportation providers, non-profits and tribal governments must have their audits performed by an independent certified public account.

The Washington State Auditor's Office issues reports when the office completes audits. WSDOT has access to all audit reports and retrieves electronic copies as necessary. WSDOT follows up as outlined in the guidebook on any questions or findings regarding audit reports and issues a management decision letter when necessary.

Closeout

WSDOT closes projects after reimbursing a grantee for the last of the organization's eligible expenses (also known as closeout). WSDOT begins closeout when one of the following occurs:

- The grantee verifies that the organization has incurred and been reimbursed for all project expenses by filling in the final request field on their reimbursement form, indicating that it is the organization's final reimbursement request.
- WSDOT has reimbursed all grant agreement funding available to the grantee.
- The grantees project has reached the end of its two- or four-year term (operating projects).

In the first example, WSDOT's Public Transportation Division notifies the agency's Accounting and Audit Offices of the closeout. In the second example above, WSDOT closes out the project when all available funds are spent.

Closeout of capital agreements is for fiscal purposes only. Capital assistance agreements have an agreement period equivalent to the minimum useful life of the equipment purchased. As such, the agreement period for buses may be up to 12 years after the acceptance of the equipment. For some equipment (non-vehicle), it may be longer.

WSDOT may amend or terminate capital assistance agreements if grantees transfer project equipment between one another before the equipment has reached its minimum useful life.

Operating assistance agreements have an agreement period of 24 and 48 months and aren't extended or closed prior to the end date of the agreement unless unforeseen circumstances make a change in term necessary.

Procurement

With WSDOT oversight, grantees may conduct vehicle and equipment purchases directly from an existing contract with another governmental agency, if eligible, or through participation in a statewide procurement process. WSDOT's role is to ensure grantees make purchases competitively and in compliance with federal procurement policies.

WSDOT supplies grantees with the Consolidated Grant Guidebook, which outlines the applicable federal procurement policies and procedures.

WSDOT requires pre-approval of all bid documents for large procurements and quotes for vehicle purchases from cooperative procurement contracts. As such, as grantees proceed in their approval of equals process (a specific procurement process that allows vendors to suggest alternatives to the original specifications that may meet the fit and function of the performance specification) and contract execution, they must consult WSDOT to ensure compliance with the federal competitive procurement process.

WSDOT also requires pre-approval of any purchase from other states' cooperative schedule contracts.

WSDOT coordinates with the Washington State Department of Enterprise Services, Contracts and Legal Services Division, to solicit a statewide, multi-vendor, multi-vehicle contract for transit vehicles and associated vehicle equipment. The contract contains all federal and state procurement rules and regulations. The Department of Enterprise Services makes these contracts available to all eligible grantees supported by federal capital grants. The Department of Enterprise Services provides grantees participating in this contract with complete procurement documentation to verify compliance with federal and state requirements.

Property management

WSDOT retains legal ownership (i.e., continuing control) of vehicles purchased by grantees with state or FTA program funding through the vehicle's minimum useful life. When titling a vehicle, WSDOT is listed as the legal owner and the grantee is listed as the registered owner responsible for licensing, collision insurance, and operation and maintenance of the vehicle.

WSDOT developed and maintains a database of vehicle and equipment inventory records. The database reports distinguish between currently owned vehicles, and those that have served their minimum useful life and that WSDOT has released to the grantee.

Inventory reports

WSDOT requires capital assistance grantees to submit annual asset inventories, such as the physical equipment inventory, physical facility inventory, and physical rolling stock inventory and verification of continued use.

Information from these inventories becomes part of the WSDOT inventory record along with the title and certificate of collision insurance coverage.

Maintenance

As a condition of receiving state and federal funding, Washington state public transportation agencies and providers must submit an Asset Management Plan to WSDOT. The plan must include an inventory report of transportation system assets (e.g., vehicles, equipment, facilities) and provide a preservation plan based on lowest life-cycle cost. The lowest lifecycle cost method ensures that the agency maintains an asset in an acceptable condition, maximizing safety and useful life.

WSDOT adopted lowest lifecycle cost and the Asset Management Plan as a best practice for grantees. WSDOT also provides statewide training and technical assistance on how to develop an Asset Management Plan and the lifecycle cost calculation. WSDOT will incorporate any future MAP-21 provisions related to asset management and state of good repair into the agency's Asset Management Plan guidance.

WSDOT reviews asset maintenance records during desk reviews and/or site visits. WSDOT randomly selects equipment and/or vehicles for physical inspection during site visits, which the agency conducts at least once per biennium as long as WSDOT holds an interest in the equipment.

Vehicle use

Grantees may only use grant-funded vehicles for passenger transportation services as described in the grant agreement.

WSDOT expects grantees of capital funds for vehicles to use the vehicles for the provision of transportation service within the area described in the grant agreement for the vehicle's useful life.

WSDOT reviews grantee records annually, or as required by program regulations, to verify compliance with these minimum-vehicle-use requirements.

Grantees may not transfer the operational control of a vehicle purchased under a federal funding program without prior written approval from WSDOT.

Disposition

Prior to the end of a vehicle's useful life

When an accident occurs that prevents a vehicle from further operations, WSDOT receives the insurance proceeds. If the grantee purchases a replacement vehicle, WSDOT forwards the proceeds to them after the replacement vehicle is delivered and accepted by the grantee.

A replacement vehicle must be a similar type and of equal or greater value than the one damaged. If a grantee doesn't replace the damaged vehicle, WSDOT keeps the federal share of the insurance proceeds and forwards the local share to the grantee.

At the end of a vehicle's minimum useful life

WSDOT releases interest in grant-funded vehicles at the end of their minimum useful life. WSDOT may choose to release legal ownership prior to the end of the useful life if:

- WSDOT has documented that the vehicle is unreliable and that the anticipated lifecycle costs don't warrant continued operation of the vehicle.
- Based on reduced environmental impacts, WSDOT determines that retiring the vehicle is in the best interests of the public.
- WSDOT determines that early retirement allows for transit investment in new technologies expected to benefit the industry and the public.

The Consolidated Grant Guidebook contains a chart outlining minimum useful life of accepted vehicle categories that matches the guidelines FTA Circular 9300.1B.

In addition, if a grantee sells federally funded vehicles or equipment that are beyond their minimum useful life and receive proceeds more than \$5,000, they must return the prorated federal portion above \$5,000 to FTA via WSDOT (49 USC § 5334(h)(4)(B)). FTA provides additional information on the subject of asset dispositions as part of its Bipartisan Infrastructure Law Disposition Requirements Frequently Asked Questions.